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BEFORE TilE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT 011 CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

SUSAN RENEE COON 
15325 Lake Berryessa Ct, 
Bakersfield, CA 93314 
Pharmacy Technician Registrntion No, TCH 
104205 

Respondent. 

Case No. 5018 

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER 

[Gov. Code,§ 11520] 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1, On or about September 12, 2015, Complainant Virginia K. Herold, in her official 

capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, 

filed Accusation No. 5018 against Susan Renee Coon (Respondent) before the Board of 

Pharmacy, (Accusation attached as Exhibit A.) 

2. On oi about June 24,2010, the Board of Pharmacy (Board) issued Phatmacy 

Technician Registration No. TCH 104205 to Respondent. The Pharmacy Technician Registration 

expired on November 3 0, 2017, and has not been renewed. 

3, On Febnmry"16, 2016, copies of Accusation No. 5018, Statement to Respondent, 

Notice ofDefense, Request for Discovel'y, and Discovery Statutes (Govel'l1ment Code sections 
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11507.5, 11507.6, and 11507.7) were sent to Respondent's address of record by Certified and 

First Class Mail. Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 136, Respondent is required 

to report and maintain his address of record with the Board. Respondent's address of record was 

and is 15325 Lake Berryessa Ct., Bakersfield, CA 93314. 

4. Service of the Accusation was effective as a matter of law under the provisions of 

Government Code section 11505, subdivision (c) and/or Business & Professions Code section 

124. 

5. Government Code section 11506( c) states, in pertinent part: 

(c) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits if the respondent 
files a notice of defense ... and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all 
parts of the accusation ... not expressly admitted. Failure to file a notice of defense 
... shall constitute a waiver of respondent's right to a hearing, but the agency in its 
discretion may nevertheless grant a hearing. 

6. Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service upon her of 

the Accusation, and therefore waived her r.ight to a hearing on the merits of Accusation No. 5018. 

7. California Government Code section 11520(a) states, in pertinent part: 

(a) If the respondent either fails to me a notice of defense ... or to appear at 
the hearing, the agency may take action based upon the respondent's express 
admissions or upon other evidence and affidavits may be used as evidence without 
any notice to respondent .... 

8. Pursuant to its authority under Government Code section 11520, the Board finds 

Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without further hearing and, based on the 

relevant evidence contained in the Default Decision Evidence Packet in this matter, as well as 

taking official notice of all the investigatory reports, exhibits and statements contained therein on 

file at the Board's offices regarding the allegations contained in Accusation No. 5018, finds that 

the charges and allegations in Accusation No. 5018, are separately and severally, found to be true 

and correct by clear and convincing evidence. 

9. Taking official notice of its own internal records, pursuant to Business and 

Professions Code section 125.3, it is hereby determined that the reasonable costs for Investigation 

and Enforcement are $6,302.50 as of March 30, 2016. 
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DETERMINATION OF ISSUES 

1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Susan Renee Coon has subjected 

her Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH 104205 to discipline. 

2. The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default. 

3. The Board ofPharmacy is authorized to revoke Respondent's Pharmacy Technician 

Registration based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation which are supported 

by the evidence contained in the Default Decision Evidence Packet in this case: 

a. Violation of Code sections 4301 G) and 4301 (o), and 4059, in conjunction with 

Health and Safety Code section 11 171, on the grounds of unprofessional conduct in that 

Respondent furnished to herself or another without valid prescription, controlled substances or 

dangerous drugs; 

b. Violation of Code section 4301, subdivisions (f) and (o), in that Respondent 

committed acts involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or corruption; 

c. Violation of Code sections 4301, subdivisions G) and (o), and 4060, in that 

Respondent possessed dangerous drugs and controlled substances without a valid prescription; 

d. Violation of Code section 4301 (!),in conjunction with California Code of 

Regulations, title 16, section 1770,. on the grounds ofunprofessional conduct in that Respondent 

was convicted of crimes sub&tantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a 

registered pharmacy technician; 

e. Violation of Code section 430 I, subdivision (h), in that Respondent used 

alcoholic beverages to an extent or in a manner dangerous or injurious to himself, another person, 

or the public; 

f. Violation of Code section 4301, subdivision (o), on the grounds of 

unprofessional conduct in that Respondent was convicted of a crime substantially related to the 

qualifications, functions or duties of a pharmacy technician and committed acts in violation of the 

Pharmacy Act. 
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ORDER 

IT IS SO ORDERED that Pharmacy,Technician Registration No. TCH 104205, heretofore 

issued to Respondent Susan Renee Coon, is revoked. 

Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent may serve a 

written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within 

seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may 

vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute. 

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00p.m. on May 26,2016. 


It is so ORDERED on Apri\26, 2016. 


BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

By 
Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D. 
Board President 

52036465.DOC 
DOJ Matter ID:LA2014510885 

Attachment: 

Exhibit A: Accusation 
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15· ~1 ----~--------------~R~e~ssp~·

KAMALA D. HARRIS 

Attorney General of California 

THOMAS L. RINALDI . 

Supervising J)oputy Attorney General 

KRITHTl-JIKA VASUDEVAN 

Dep\!ty Attorney General 

State BarNo, 247590 


3QO So. Spring StJ'eet, Suite 1702 

Los Angal~.~. CA 90013 

Telephone: (213) 897-2540 

Facsimile: (213) 897-2804 


Attorneys/or Complainant 

BEFORE 'I'HE 
, BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT 011 CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATl\< OF CAL!J.lOR,)'IlA 

1-----------------------~ 

In tho Matter of tho .Accus~tion Aguinst: 

SUSAN Rl~NEIC COQN 

15325 Lake Berryessa Ct. 

BakeJ•sfield, CA 93314 


Pharmacy Techniciat1 Registration
No, TCH 104205 

o~nd~e~ht~,

Case No, 5018 

ACCUSATION 

Complainant alleges: 

PAR'rms 

I, Vlrgini~l Htil'o1d ("Complalriaiit") b.rhigs this Accusation solely In he!' official capacit-y 

as th~ Bxeo\illve Otl1ce,r of the Board of Pharmacy, Depart1net1t of Consumer Affairs, 

2. dn oJ• about June 24, 2010, the Board of Pharmacy ("uoard") iss\1\)d Pharmacy 

Technician Reglsti·~tion No, TCl-1104205 to S\Jsan Renee Coons ("Respondent"), Tho Phtu·macy 

Technician Reglstmtion was In !\ill fbrce arid efl\;ct at all tlii1es relevant to the charges brought 

heroin and Will expire o1i Novembel' 30, 2015, unless t•onewed. 


Jl/RISDICTION 


3. This Accusation Is brought before the Board under the authoi•lty of the following 

 	laws, All section references t\l'e to the Business and .PJ•ofesslons Code ("Code") unless othel'Wise 

indicated, 



•.' 
' I 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

/// 

/// 

·-------~---··~---··--~1 --------·---------- 2 

Accusation 

4. Sectl01\ 118, subdivision (b) of the Code provides, In pet•tlnent fiMt, that the 

expiration ofa license shall not deprive the Board jmlsdlction to proceed with il disciplinary 

action during the pe!'iod within which tho llcense may be renewed, restored, reissued or 

l'oinstated. 

5, Section 4011 of the Code provides: 

"The bonrd shalltidmh)ist~t· and enforce this chapter [Pharmacy Law, (Business and 

Professions Code, Sec 4000 et esq,)] a1id the Uniform Controlled Substances Act (Divlslo1i 10 

coillfuenclng with Sectkin1 lciOO) of the Heallh and StiMy Code)." 

6. Sectlo1'14300 of tho Code states, In portiMnt pm'l, that every license Issued by the 

Bo~rd Is subJect to dlsolpllne, includh1g su:i\lehsion 01' I'Cvooatlon, 

STATUTORY Pl~OVISIONS 
'' ' ·'·'·'• 

7, Section 490 of the Code states, in pertln¢nt part: 

"(a) In addition to a1iy othe1· action that a board Is pe1'n\ltted to take against a liooftsee, a 

board 1i1uy suspend 01' !'evoke illloense oi1 tlie g1·ound that the licensee has beeh convicted ofa 
. ' . 

ol'ili1e, If tho crlnie is suhstarttlally related to the qua!Hioatlons, functions, or duties of the business 

oi· profession for which the Jloense was Issued. 

"(b) NatwlthstaiHling any o\he1· provision ofiaw, a b6ard may exercise any authority to 

discipline a licensee for o6nvlction of a orlme that Is Independent of the authol'i\y granted under 

subdivision (a) only if the orhne l&Substantit;lly related to the qualif1oatloi1s, functions, o1· duties 

of the business 01' profession for which the iloensee's license was Issued, 

"(c) A conviction within the nwalilng of this sectloh hieans a plea or verdict of guilty or n 

conviction following a plea of nolo contendere. Any action that a board Is permitted to take 

following the cstabllsh1hent of a conviction may lie tt\ken when the time for appeal has oh\psed, 01' 

the Judgment of convlctioi1 has been affirmed on appeal, o1·when an Ol'dor gr11ntlng probation is 

made suspending the Imposition of sentence, lrrospcotlve of a subsequent order under the 

provisions of Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code." 
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Aoc\18!\tlon 

8, Section 493 ofthe Code states: 

"Notwithstanding any other provision of law, In a proceeding conducted by a 


boa1•d within the department p\II'S\lant to law to deny an application fbr a license o1· to 


suspend 01' revoke a· license or otherwise take disciplinary action against a person who holds 

a license, upon the ground that the appllca11t or the licet1soe has been convicted of a crime 

substantially related to the qualifications, functions, a.nd duties of the licensee In question, 

the record of colwlction of tbc crime shall be concl\JS!ve evidence of the fact that the 

convlutlon ooo\H'I'ed, b\ltonly of that fuct, and the board may lilquit·o into the ch·cum.stance.1 

sut'l'ounding the cbinmlsslon of tho ct•hne In ordot· to fix the d¢gr~'C of .discipline Ol' to 

deterh1lne if the conviction Is substmitialiy related to the qualifications, functions, and 

duties of the licensee in question." 

As used in this scctiOI1, "license" Includes "certificate," "permit," "authority," 

and "registration." 

9. Sectlot1430l of the Code states, In pet·tinent part: 


"The board shall take action against tmy holder of a license who Is guilty of unprofessional
. . 
' . 

oondt1ct or whoso license has been pi'OOUI'ed by fraud or misrepresentation or Issued by mistake, 

Unprofqssiohal conduct shall i110lude, but is not lilnited to, any of the following: 

I I I I 

"(!) ·The oommissioh of any act Involving mm:ai Mpltucle, dishonesty, fratrd, deceit, or 

oorl·uptlon, whether the act is oommltt6d In the course of reh!tions as a licensee Cll' othc1;wisc, and 

whether the act is a feloriy or misdemeanor or· not. 

I I I I 

"(h) Tho aclmlnlstoring to. oneself, of any controlled substance, <)I' the trse of any 

dangerotiS dt~lg or of alcohoilc bevenrges to the extent Ol' In a manner as to be dangerous or 

lnjurlousto oneself, to a por·son holding a license <mdet' this chaplet·, Ol' to ~my othet• person . 

01' to the P\lbllc, or to the extent that the usc Impairs the ability of the person to condu.ct with 

safety to the public the practice authorized by the license, 

http:condu.ct
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·"U) The violation of ttny of tho statutes of this state, of any othe1· state, o1· of the United 


States regulating contt·olled subRtances and dangerous drugs, 


"(k) Tho conviction of more than one misdemeanor or any felony Involving thc.use, 


const!tnptlon, o1• seH~admlnlstratlon of any dangel'O\JS drug o1· ulcoholic beverage, Ol' an% 


combinatlo11 of those substances, · 


"(I) The ooiwlotlm1 ofa cl'lme substantially l'~lated to the qualifications, functions, and 

duties of a llcotlsee undel'thls chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of'Chaptel'13 

(commencing with Seutlon 801) o'fTitle 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled 

substances or of a violation ofthe statutes of this state regulating controlled substances o1· 

dangerous dntgs shall be conchJsive evidence of unprofessional conduct.,, A plea o1· verdict of 

guilty ol' aconviction following uplea of nolo contendere Is deeined to be a conviction within the 

meaning ofthls p1·ovlslon," 

I I I I 

"(o) Vioi~tlng or a\t~mptlng to violate, directly Ol' lndh·ectly, or assisting In or abetting tho 

violation of or conspiring to vlolete any provision or tel'm of this chapter Ol' of the appllo~Jble 

fuderal and state laws and t·egulations governing pharm~10y, Including t'egulatlpns established by 

the board or by emy other state or fu!leral regt1latory ag~ncy," 

· I 0. Section 4059, subdivision (a), of the Code states: . 

"A pei·s·on 1nay not t\11·nish any dangerous drug, ex.cept upon the prescription of 

a physician, dentist, podiatrist, optomotl'ist, veterllwlan, OJ' natut·opathlc doctor pt1rsunnt to 


Section 3640.7. A pet•son may not furnish eyny danget·ous device, excejit upon the 


prescl'iption of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, ·OptoJnet!'l.94 veterinarian, or nat11ropathlc 


doctOI' pursuant to Section 3640,7." 

11, Section 4060 of the Code states: 

"No person shall possess any controlled substance, except that furnished to u 

person \IJlOI1 the proscription of a physician, dentist, pocilatl'lst, or veterhwian, or ftlmished 

pmsuant to a drug ordot·lssuod by a cortlfle~ nurse•mldwlfe pm·stmnt to Section 2746.51, a 

nurse p1·aotltlonet· pw·suant to Seotlon 2836,1, or a physic! an asslsttmt pu1·suant t? Section 

http:OptoJnet!'l.94
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Aocusotlon 

3502. l. This section shall not apply to the possession of any controlled substance by a 

miinufaoturer, wholesaler, pharmacy, physician, podlatJ·lst, dentist, vetcrlnal'lan, oertlflod 

nul'se-rnldwlfe, nurse pmctltlonet', ot· physician assistant; when In stock In containers 

coneotly labeled with the nalne and address of the supplier or producer. 

Nothing in this section U\lthcrlzes a certlljod 11\li'So·mldwlfe, a nurse practitioner, 

o1· a physlolan.asslstarit to ordeJ• his Ol' hal' own stock of dangerous drugs and clcvlocs, 

12. He~lth arid Safety Code· section 11171 provides that "No person shall presol'ibe, 


adminlstct•, or 'fuJ·nlsh a coilti·.oiled substance except under the conditions and In the manner 


provided by this division." 


REGVLAT~JRY I•Aoy~~!,ONS 
13. Callfomla Code ofRegulatl01is, title 16, section 1770, states, In pertinent part: 

"Fot· i!Je purpose of denial, S\lspcnsion, Ol' revocation of a personal o1· facility license 

pursuant to Dlvialoh 1.5 (commencing with Sectlon475) of the Business and Professions Code, a 

Ol'lme or net shall' be considered substantially rillated to the tj\lalilicatlons, functions 01' dutl~s of a 

licensee oJ' reglstra11t lfto as\lbshmtlal degree it ev!dei10es present Ol' potential urifitness ofa 

licensee or reglsli'tlnt to perform the f1mct!ons authorized by his license ol' reglstr~tlon In alnflllnol' 

consistent with the public health, Bafety, or welfare." 

CONT~OLLE~ $tJBSTAt{CE(Jl0-N:{{JCROU~ DRU,G 

14.. Seotlon402l of the Code states: 

"Controlled substance" means tiny substa119e fisted In Chapte1· 2 (commencing with Section 

11053) of Division 10 ofthe Health and Strfety Code." 

15. Sectlon4022 of the Code stat<is, In tiertlnont part: 

"'Dangerous drug' ol' 'dan~~ro\ls device' nieans any d1·ug ot· 'device unsafe for self ttse, 

except veterlnai'Y dntgs that aJ•e labeled as such, and Including tho tbllowlng: 

"(a) Any drug tlmt bears the legend: 'Caution: federal law prohibits dispensing without 

prescription,' 'Rx only,' oJ• words ofshnllaJ· Import, 

t'.' 
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Aoousal\on 

"(c) Any other drug ot device that by federal Ol' state law can be lawfully dispensed only 

on prescription or 'f\il'nlshcd pursuant to Section 4006," 

16. The following drugs are refili'Onoed herein: 
. 

O&NERIC NAMF, 
BRAND NAME 

--··'Noroa·~-·· Hydrocodolio·r­
Acol~mln~~hert

APAP 
AIQrazoiEll11Xanax 

Soma CarisoQrO£t91 
Atlvan Loi'azePam.. -
Vlagra 

Sildentlfll 

Trazadone 

DANOEROIJS CONTROLLED INI>ICATION FOU 

DRIJGl'ER 
 SUilSTANCI~ P!m US I~ 


Codo Section 
 Honlth nnd Sofoty Codo 

4022 
 ·IIISCI 

Yes 
 HSC 11056 (e)(4) Pain 

_J:lSGJJ]$.?_@ffi__ .1;Jlxietv___y~--
Yes; · -Muscle rclaxN 

. .Yes 
No 

HSC 11 (!21(d)(l6) Anxlet~ 

Erectile 
·dvsf'unctlon 

Yes 

Yes ·No 

AnticteoressantNo ..... ---:-·-·-----------..- ­
' 

.,,., ·' 

g~Si' rmgQVElW 
•17, Section ·125,3 of the Co do states, In pc1tlnent pa1'1, that the r:loaJ·d may request the 

admlnistl'ative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation Ol' violations of 

the llceilslng act to i1ay a suni not to exoe.ed the I'Ct1sonalllo costs of the investigation and 

enforcement of the case, 

li:A$:rruA.:L IiACISG~Oi;JNl! 

18. Respondent worked at CVS Pharmacy, located ;\t 8200 Stockdale Hwy, Suite 9, 

Bake1·sfleld, Califoi·hla. 

19. On or m·ound January 10, 2014, the S\01'0 conducted an Investigation due to 

~mexplained CVS Mo1iey 

Jahuary 28, 2,014. 

Card entr!~s. Respondent was q\lostioned 
.. 

about possible thetts on 

20, Respond~nt stat~d she had been wmkilig at the store since March 2013. ln o1· around 

Mtu•ch 2013, Respondent starred taking medication home to her boyfl'iond. !-lor boyfriend would 

sell the medications, 

21' Respondent would take the dn1gs from tho pharmacy and put them In vials, When no 

one was looking she wo,uld potll' the contents of the vials in her pocket and discard the vials, 

mailto:J:lSGJJ]$.?_@ffi
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Acousntion 

22. She took approximately eighty bottles ofHyd1•ocodone, approximately sixty bottles of 

Alpl•azolam, two to three bottles of Viagra, two to three bottles of Carisoprodol, and 

approximately one bottle ofLorazepam, 


23, The last time she took drugs from the pharmacy was about a week prior to January 

28, 2014, 

24, At some point, she began stollling g;lt! cm·cl~. She would u&e the gift cards to get 

cig~ll'ettes and alcohol, 

25, . She stole about ten to twelve gift cards worth approximately $151,99leaoh, 


26, She admitted she took Hydrocodone approximately one to three times a week. 


27. She admitted she took Alprazolam appi·oxlmately one to two times a week: 

28, She admitted that she caused the store a loss of about $12,944.81, 

lliRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Unprofessional Conduct- F11misbiug of Cont1·olled Substance(s)) 

29. Respondent Is subject to dlscipllnm·y action \Jndet' Code sections 4301, subdivisions 

0) and (o), m1d 4059, In conjunction with Health and St~fety Code section· 11171, In that 

Respondent furnished to herself or another without a valid prescription, controlled substances Ol' 

dangerous dntgs. Complainant refers to and by this reference Incorporates the allegations set 

forth above In paragraphs 18 through 28, lnolt1slve, as though set forth fully, 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPI,JNE 

(Acts Involving Mol'al Turpitude, Dishonesty, Fra11d, Deceit, or Corruption) 

30, Respondent is subject to dlsolpllnary action undet' Code section 4301, subdivision(!) 

and (o), on the grounds of unprofessional cond\ict, In that Respondent committed acts Involving 

moral tmpltude, dishonesty, 1:\'aud, deoelt, or corruption, Complainant refers to ttnd by this 

reference lncoi'POI'!Itos the allegations set forth above in paragraphs 18 through 28, inclusive, as 

though set forth f'\1lly, 

http:12,944.81
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THffiD CAUSE FOR DI~CIPLlNll~ 
' 

(Possesslott oi'Daugerous Drugs and Contt•ollcd Substances Without a Valid'Pt•esct•!ptlon) 

31, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code sections 4301, subdivision Q) 

and (o), and 4060, In that Respondent possessed, doi\gei'Ous drugs and .controlled substances 

without ~~ valid prescription. Complainant l'olbrs to and by this reference Incorporates the 

allegations set !'ortlt above In paragraphs 18 through 28, inclusive, as though set forth fully. 

FOURTH CAU§I£ FO)l ~lSCif1llill). 

(Conviction of Substantlnlly Relate(! Cl'ime) 

32. Responde11t Is subject to disciplinary action under sections 4301, subdivision (I) and 

490 of the Code, In cohj\IIJPtion with· California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, In 

that, Responqent was co~vlcted of a crime substantially related to the quilllt1cations, f\mctlons or 

d\Jtlos of a phal'lnacy technician, On Ol' about Aug\JSt 4, 2014, afteJ' pleading nolo contendere, 

Respondent was convicted of one mlsdemearyor count of violating Vehicle Code soctlon647(f) 

[public Intoxication] in the cl'iminal proceeding entitled The People ofth(< State ofCalifornia v. 

Susan Coom (Super, Ct, Kern County, 2014, No. BM827018A), The Court placed Respondent 

on three years prob.ation, with tct•ms and conditions, The olromnstai1Ces s\ll'round!ng this 

oonvlotlon are th61 on Ol' about July 31,2013, a California Hlghwa)' Patrol o"fllcer npproaohed a 

oar parked approximately ten feet from the curb, The oft1cer saw. Respondent In tho driver seat 

slumped over. The oft1cer woke the Rospotitloi\t up, He eQuid smell an· odor of alcohol emitting 

from the car. The officer nskod Respondent to exit the em•, When she did, she cotild not maintnln 

her balance and req\Jil·ed the offlce1''s ttss!stance to stand. Her speech was so slul'l'ed'that the 

officer could not undm·s4tnd her, The officer tl'ansportod her to the sheriff's station to conduct a 

breath test. Rospondent's·breath test l'osult came bt1ck with a blood alcohol lev~l of ,22/.23%. 

FIFTH CAUSE FOR ))lSCIPU!'fE 

(Dungc•·mis Usc of Alcobol) 

Respondent is subject to dlscipllnm·y action undel' section 4301, subdivision (h) 

and (k} of the Code, In that on (ll' abot1t August 4, 2014, Respondent used oleo hoi tc the extent or 

In n mannel', dange1·ous Ol' lnjul'ious to herself, anothel' person or the public. Complainant rofel's 
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to, and by this reference incot·porates, tl)o allegations set fbt'th above In paragraph 32, as though 

set fotth fully. 


SIXTH CAU8E JrOR DlSCIPLI~E 


(Violation of Pharmacy Act) 


. 34. 
 Respondent Is subject to disciplinary actlon1mdet• section 4301, subdivision (o) of 

the Code, on the grounds of unprofessional conduct, In that Respond~nt was convicted of a crime 

substanjlally related to the qttallflcations, !\motions or tMies of a pharmMy tochnlohu1 and 

.committed acts In violation of the Pharmacy Act. Co.nipialnant t•efers to; and by this reference 


incot•pot•ates, the allegations set forth Qbove In paragraph 32, as though set forth fully, · 

' , I . ' 

DISCIPLll'(ARY CO~SIDERAJ'IONS 
' I ' '; , 

35. In Ol'der to detorl11lno the degree of dlsolplltw, ifany to be Imposed on Respondent, 

Complainant tlileges the lbllowlng: 

a. On or about November 30,2012, the Bom·d Issued Citation and Fine No, C\2011 

50330 to Ro~pondent for violating secti(ll1 4301, subdivision (h) and (1), resulting In an Issuance 

of a $460.00 fine, Respondent has C\lmplied with tho clltltlon. The clttttlon was based upon 

Respondent's conviction that she su&'taln0d ot· about October 4, 2012, after pleading guilty to 

vlolath\g misdemeanor Vehicle Code section, 23152 subdivision (a) [dl'ivltig while under the 

influonocofaicohol] In the crltnlnal proceeding entitled The P~op/e of.the State o[Cailfornlav. 

Susan Renee Coon (Supe1·. Ct. Kern County, 20 i2, No. BM795934A). The Court placed 

Respondent on two years.probatlon ahd ordct·cd hot· to servo two days In jail, and pay a flne 

b. On or about August 6, 20 13, the Board issued CiMion and Fino No. CI 2012 56194 

to Respondent for violating section 4301, subdivisions (h) and (i), l'cS\Iiting In tho issuan.oc of a 

 $400.00, Respondent ha,q complied with the ClMion. The citation wils based upon Respondent's 

conviction that she sustained on or about Aprllll, 2013, after pleading guilty, to one 

mlsdetneanot· count of violating Penal Code section 647, subdivision (f) [public lntoxlpatlon] In 

the crlm Ina I proceeding e11titlcd The People ofthe Stale ofCal(fornla v, Suaan Renee Coon 

(Super, C.t. Kem CO\Illty, 2013, No. BM28Q204A). The Co\ll't ordered Respondent to pay f1nes. 

http:issuan.oc
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.PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a h~arlng be held 011 the matters hill'eln alleged, 

a11d tliilt following the benl'ing, the Bom·d Issue a decision: 

1. Revoking ot· suspending Phai·fi1aoy Teclinlcian Reglsil·atlon No. TCH 104205, Issued 

to Susan Renee· Coon; 

2. 01·~erlng Slist\n Re1\ee Coon to j1ay the Board the rcason~ble costs of the 

Investigation and enforcement of this ceyse, pursuant to seetioh 125,3 ofthe Code; and 

3' Taking such othel' and further aetioii as doemed.nocess!\1')' and pl'Oper. 

­"'"' Exeouti :~"~'~. fflcer 
Board of Pharmacy 
Dopa1'tmm1t of Cons\nne1· Affairs 

 State of Cnllf9rnla 
Complainant 

·




